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   2905 Meridian Parkway, Durham, NC 27713 / 919. 361. 5000 creating experiences through experience 

ADDENDUM NUMBER TWO 
 
Date: August 7, 2023 
 
From:  City of Greenville, McAdams 
 
Re: Greenville Gateway Signage 
 ITB# 23-24-03 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS: 
 
Bidder is hereby notified that this Addendum shall become a part of the Contract Documents and shall be attached 
to the Project Manual for the Project. 
 
The following items are intended to revise and clarify the Drawings and the Project Manual. 
 
The bidder shall ensure that his Sub-Bidders are in full receipt of the information contained herein. 
_______________________________________________________________ 
ADDENDA ITEMS: 

PROJECT MANUAL (0) ITEMS 

DRAWINGS (1) ITEMS 

MISCELLANEOUS (2) ITEMS 

MISCELLANEOUS RFI’s (23) ITEMS 

END OF TITLE PAGE 
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PROJECT MANUAL         
1. None 
 
DRAWINGS           
1. Revised Sheet LI-1 
 
MISCELLANEOUS         
1. Project Close-out Requirements 
2. Legible Version of the Glowback Product sheet 
 
RFIs        
1. The Cupola Tower: Confirm that the roof is to be fabricated out of aluminum and painted with a Faux Painted 

Finish (Patina Aged Copper Look)? 
Answer: The Cupola on top of the tower should be aged copper. It is more receptive to the shape. 
 

2. The Cupola Tower: Please confirm that the Arch in the middle section (Section B) of the Cupola tower is enclosed 
with aluminum, all 4 sides, and not open. 

Answer: Yes, closed on all four sides. 
 

3. Paint Finish: Please specify the Paint Colors, Paint Material, Paint Finish or texture and Brand Name and Paint 
manufacturer. 

Answer: Brand: Matthews Paint / Colors: Base and tower ( Light Gray ) MP 02650 Garbo Silver / Dark 
Green MP22118 Forest Parc Green / Light GreenMP11856 Laser Lime 
 

4. The Light Green Component of the Sign Cabinet: The 14” tall X 30’ (three 10’ sections) light green accent lighting 
is fabricated like a channel letter with clear Lexan or acrylic face decorated with translucent vinyl illuminated 
with LEDs. Please confirm that the section that appears above the darker green cabinet is a single faced channel 
with 3/16” acrylic or Lexan material decorated with translucent vinyl and secured with a custom 1 ½” fabricated 
aluminum retainer. 

Answer: Yes, plus Green color lighted face is translucent vinyl ( green ) 
 

5. Channel Letters: Please verify specifications - One reading of Channel Letters “Welcome To Greenville”.” 
Welcome To” are 12” tall internally illuminated Face Lit with 3” returns mounted flush to the sign cabinet with 
Jewelite retainers painted white. The “Greenville” letters are 48” tall Capital letters and 36” tall lower-case 
letters with 10” returns Face lit and halo illuminated and mounted with stand-offs and the retainer for the faces 
are 1 ½” fabricated aluminum painted white. 

Answer: Confirmed 
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6. Cupola – Is this a true copper product with an aged finish?  Or can it be formed metal with a powder coat or 
painted aged finish? 

Answer: The Cupola on top of the tower shall be aged copper. It is more receptive to the shape. 
 

7. Can McAdams provide the SESCO Lighting quote to potential bidders vs. the redacted version in the design docs 
Answer: Contractors to contact Sesco at the number listed in the plan set to obtain pricing. 
 

8. Same thing for the Glowback LED quote.  Its blurred out in the design docs.  Can we get a clean version? 
Answer: A higher quality copy of the Glowback LED quote has been included in this addendum. Contractor 
shall contact Glowback to confirm pricing. 
 

9. Are alternate sources acceptable for the SESCO Lighting and Glowback LED vendors? 
Answer: Glowback LED is a pre-selected vendor. An approved equal alternate to the SESCO lighting 
controls and uplighting is allowed but contractor will need to provide data showing that components are 
equal. This includes but is not limited to quality, functionality, warranty and long-term service.   
 

10. The light green illuminated swoosh element – Is just the visible swoosh portion illuminated?  Or does the entire 
light green cabinet that goes behind the darker green cabinet illuminate down to the base?  If, it’s the latter will 
the light green cabinet be spaced apart from the dark cabinet to give the entire sign a light green halo effect? 

Answer: The light green panel shall be illuminated as quoted in the GlowbackLED component list with 
Color changing + white (RGBW) lights. A legible version of this list has been included in this addendum. 
The dark green and light green panels are spaced apart to provide a layered appearance. Please see 
section on the sign plans. 
 

11. The LED listed is for interior use only. Please confirm if Principal RGB LEDs, the technology we are familiar with, 
is acceptable for this exterior application. 

Answer: The exterior lights have been revised and shown on sheet LI-1. Alternates are allowed but must 
meet performance specifications, have a 450 nanometer blue emitter, be rated for exterior use and must 
be compatible with the controller. All exterior lights shall be the product shown on LI-1 or the approved 
equal. 
 

12. We are pricing RGB LEDs in all white letters with white LEDs for halo effects on dark green background and white 
LED’s behind translucent light green top section as per our interpretation of the drawings and call outs. Is this 
interpretation correct? 

Answer: All internal lighting shall be Color Changing + White (RGBW) as specified in the Glowback product 
list. A legible list has been provided with this addendum. 
 

13. What warranty is required for the signage structure/components? 
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Answer: Contractor to provide a one-year warranty on all materials, products and labor starting from the 
date of substantial completion. "Substantial completion" means that degree of completion of a project, 
improvement or specified area or portion thereof (in accordance with the contract, as modified by any 
change orders agreed to by the parties) upon attainment of which the owner can use the same for the 
purpose for which it was intended.  
 

14. Is it possible to produce an isometric view of this cupola cap structure? 
Answer: An isometric will not be provided. Contractor and fabricators to use the plan and sections 
provided to develop cut sheets for approval. 
 

15. Site Plan Detail on Sheet C2.00, there is a note about the required surveillance camera (Furnished by Owner and 
Installed by GC.). Please provide additional description for installation requirements, such as concrete 
base/mounting pole/protective cage. And also need to know if the GC is responsible for electrical power to this 
camera. 

Answer: The security camera shown for reference only. Owner to provide the camera, pedestal and 
required wiring. Contractor to include 125 linear feet of 2” schedule 40 PVC conduit, material and labor, in 
the bid proposal to serve the final camera location to be determined during construction.  
 

16. Refer to note at the top right of Sheet A1.00....”Verify if solar system can provide enough power.”  Please 
confirm that this sign structure and/or components will not need to be designed to be powered by solar. 

Answer: This is an oversight. There is no solar system included in this bid.  
 

17. Per Sheet A1.01 it is stated that “Color Changing LED Lighting System will be provided by GlowBack LED”. Please 
clarify that all lighting elements shown on Sheet A1.01 will be provided by others and not the sign contractor.  

Answer: Glowback is a pre-approved vendor for internal sign lighting but is not provided by others. 
Contractor shall include Glowback in the bid.  
 

18. It is stated on Sheet A1.00 that breakaway bolts will be used however the footing engineering does not show 
any breakaway bolts used. Please clarify if breakaway bolts will be used or not.  

Answer: Bolts shown on the structural plans shall be used in construction. 
 

19. Will a separate sign permit be required, or will a building permit cover the entire project?  
Answer: A sign permit has been issued for the project. Contractor will be responsible to obtaining the 
permit from the City and paying fees. An encroachment for the sign from NCDOT has been obtained. 
Contractor will be responsible for all other permits and fees required for construction.  
 

20. Will the City provide primary power to the sign location?  
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Answer: Greenville Utility Commission (GUC) is bringing power to the site. Contractor shall coordinate 
transformer location during construction. Contact information for GUC will be provided to awarded 
bidder. 
 

21. Are there any special warranties/guarantees?  
Answer: Contractor to provide a one-year warranty on all materials, products and labor starting from the 
date of substantial completion. "Substantial completion" means that degree of completion of a project, 
improvement or specified area or portion thereof (in accordance with the contract, as modified by any 
change orders agreed to by the parties) upon attainment of which the owner can use the same for the 
purpose for which it was intended. Landscape material is to be included in the warranty. 
 

22. Can we submit an alternate substitute for the decor base? 
Answer: No, final design for the sign must be based on the working drawings provided in the plan set 
utilizing aluminum tubing or structural support. 

 
23. Is sales tax to be included in the bid or is the City tax exempt?  

Answer: The project is not sales tack exempt. 
 

 
 
 

Miscellaneous: 
1. Project Closeout Requirements: Contractor shall provide an operation and maintenance manual, close all 

permits and confirm compliance with the NCDOT encroachment as required in the agreement. 
 
2. Legible version of the product list located on sheet A1.01. Contractor to confirm prices with Manufacturer prior 

to bid. Notes and product list revisions listed on sheet A1.01 are still applicable to the product list. 
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